
 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023 

HELD REMOTELY & IN PERSON AT CITY HALL 
124 S. LEFEVRE ST.  

• Sign up to provide Public Comment at the meeting via calling in
• Submit Written Public Comment Before 4 pm on (May 16, 2023) - *SEE NOTE*
• Join the Zoom Meeting –

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82800346775?pwd=eVpuY1VRTWxXWlZpblZvV2RBektSUT09

Meeting ID: 828 0034 6775
Passcode: 246788
One tap mobile
+12532158782,,82800346775#,,,,*246788# US (Tacoma)
+12532050468,,82800346775#,,,,*246788# US

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kctzJNJ5Rd 

WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENTS 
If you wish to provide written public comments for the council meeting, please email your 
comments to sweathers@medical-lake.org by 4:00 p.m. the day of the council meeting and include 
all the following information with your comments: 
1. The Meeting Date
2. Your First and Last Name
3. If you are a Medical Lake resident
4. The Agenda Item(s) which you are speaking about
*Note – If providing written comments, the comments received will be acknowledged during the
public meeting, but not read. All written comments received by 4:00 p.m. will be provided to the
mayor and city council members in advance of the meeting.

Questions or Need Assistance? Please contact City Hall at 509-565-5000 

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81427343136?pwd=UC85WkdKVitlc2Z2MkI3bFp0dUMxQT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82800346775?pwd=eVpuY1VRTWxXWlZpblZvV2RBektSUT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kctzJNJ5Rd


 

 

REGULAR SESSION – 6:30 PM 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 
 

3. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

5. REPORTS 
A. Council Comments 
B. Mayor 
C. City Administrator & City Staff 

 

6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION  
A. Vacant Building Ordinance considerations 
B. Drug Possession Ordinance 

 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Consent Agenda 

i. Approve May 2, 2023, minutes and corrected April 18, 2023, minutes. 
ii. Approve May 16, 2023, Payroll Claim Warrants 50113 through 50120 and Payroll Payable 

Warrants 30000 through 30006 in the amount of $144,012.87 and Claim Warrants 50121 
through 50174 in the amount of $127,471.35. 

B. Letter Requesting Amendment to the Water Intertie Agreement with the City of Spokane 
C. J & M LLC Fireworks Retail Sales Permit Application 

 
8. RESOLUTIONS  

A. 23-587 Jazzercise Instructor Agreement Amendment 
B. 23-591 MIDCO Commercial Cleaning Agreement 
C. 23-592 Authorizing US Bank Safekeeping Account 
D. 23-593 DSHS Land Lease Amendment #3 
E. 23-594 Strathview Water Purchase Agreement 

 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – None scheduled. 

10. ORDINANCES  
A. Second Read Ordinance 1110 Establishing an Independent Salary Commission 

 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None scheduled. 

 

12. EMERGENCY ORDINANCES – No items listed. 
 

13. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS  
 

14. INTERESTED CITIZENS 
 

15. CONCLUSION 

2



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
COUNCILMEMBER EXCUSED ABSENCE 

REQUEST FORM 

Councilmember: ________________________________    

Meeting type: ___________________     Meeting Date: ____________________ 

Reason for absence: 
City Business 
Military Orders 
Ill or injured 
Employer Business 
Vacation 
Other (Please describe) __________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________ 

Date Requested: ______________________ 

By phone 
By e-mail 
In person 

Approved by Council/Committee motion on: _________________________ 

Denied by Council/Committee motion on: ___________________________ 

3



Chapter 14.16 

MAINTENANCE OF VACANT COMMERCIAL SPACE IN THE CENTRAL 

BUSINESS DISTRICT 

14.16.010 Scope. 
The provisions of this chapter apply to all structures in the Central Business District (CBD per 
Section 17.08.058), unless otherwise stated. All responsible persons (as defined in Section 
14.16.030) shall comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

14.16.020 Administration. 
This chapter will be administered by the building official, who may adopt administrative rules 
and regulations consistent with its terms. The building official (and his designee), or code 
enforcement officers, or both are authorized to enforce this chapter.  

14.16.030 Definitions. 
For the purposes of this chapter: 

“City” means the city of Medical Lake, its officers, employees, and agents. 

“Commercial space” means any portion of a structure in the Central Business District that is not 
intended for residential use. 

Occupied. A commercial space is considered occupied if a permitted, nonresidential use is 
physically located and lawfully operating in the space for at least six consecutive months. 

“Responsible person” means any person, firm, association, corporation or any agent thereof 
owning, leasing, renting or having lawful possession of a structure in the Central Business 
District. 

“Central Business District” means the area in the city of Medical Lake as defined by the Medical 
Lake zoning code, Title 17. 

“Vacant commercial space” means any portion of a street-level commercial space that, on or 
after July 1, 2023, is not occupied and has not been occupied during the preceding ninety days. 

4



14.16.040 General minimum maintenance requirements. 
All responsible persons shall perform the following with respect to each structure they own, 
lease, rent or lawfully possess: 

A.  Maintain all exterior surfaces, including but not limited to doors, windows, door and window 
frames, cornices, porches, trim, balconies, decks, and fences, in good condition. 

B.  Protect exterior wood surfaces, other than decay-resistant woods, from the elements and 
decay with paint or other protective covering or treatment. If protection of the surface is 
compromised, restore adequate protection within a reasonable time; for example, remove 
peeling, flaking or chipped paint and repaint the compromised surface. 

C.  Cause all siding and masonry joints and joints between the building envelope and the 
perimeter of windows, doors, and skylights to be weather-resistant and watertight. 

D.  Coat all metal surfaces subject to rust or corrosion, except those designed to be stabilized 
by oxidation, to inhibit rust and corrosion, after first stabilizing any existing rust and corrosion. 
Remove oxidation stains from exterior surfaces. 

E.  Maintain all exterior walls free from moss, algae, dirt, grime, holes, breaks, and loose or 
decaying materials. Weatherproof and properly coat the surface of all exterior walls when 
required to prevent deterioration. 

F.  Maintain the roof and flashing of all structures so that they are sound, tight, free of moss, 
algae or defects that admit rain, attract pests or create a public nuisance. Maintain adequate 
roof drainage to prevent dampness and deterioration in the walls and inside the structure. 
Maintain roof drains, gutters, and downspouts in good repair and free from obstructions.  

E. Post the property with the name and twenty-four (24) hour contact phone number of the 
local property manager as follows: 

THIS PROPERTY IS MANAGED BY [insert name], TO REPORT PROBLEMS OR CONCERNS, PLEASE 
CALL [insert phone number]. The posting shall be no less than eighteen inches by twenty four 
inches (18" x 24") and shall be of a font that is legible from a distance of at least forty five feet 
(45'). The posting shall be placed on the interior of a window to the front of the property (facing 
the street) so it is visible from the street, or secured to the exterior of the building/structure to 
the front of the property (facing the street) so it is visible from the street, or, if no such area 
exists, on a stake of sufficient size to support the posting in a location that is visible from the 
street to the front of the property but not readily accessible to vandals. Exterior posting must 
be constructed of, and printed with, weather resistant materials. 
 

5



14.16.050 Vacant commercial space registration. 

A.  At least one responsible person for each vacant commercial space must register that space 
with the city within 10 calendar days of the date the space becomes vacant commercial space, 
as that term is defined in Section 14.16.030, unless: 

1.  The space is the subject of a current, valid building permit for repair or rehabilitation 
and the responsible person provides proof, such as receipts, invoices or executed 
contracts, that the repair or rehabilitation is proceeding without significant delay; or 

2.  The space meets all applicable codes and regulations that apply to a permitted 
nonresidential use, and the responsible person is actively attempting to sell, lease, or rent 
the property (which is evidenced, in part, by appropriate signage); or 

3.  The property the commercial space is located on is the subject of a land use application 
for redevelopment for which approval has been granted, but building permits have yet to 
be issued. 

B.  A space will be considered to be registered on the date the city receives, on a form provided 
by the building official and properly completed and signed by a responsible person, the 
following information: 

1.  The street address and parcel number of the vacant commercial space; 

2.  The name, address, and daytime and evening telephone numbers of each responsible 
person for the vacant commercial space, including any owner or tenant; 

3.  The period of time the vacant commercial space is expected to remain vacant; 

4.  Any other information requested by the building official for the administration of this 
chapter. 

C.  A responsible person must post the following notice inside every vacant commercial space 
so as to be clearly visible to all potential tenants, lessees, renters or buyers upon entering the 
space but not visible from outside the space: 

This Vacant Commercial Space is registered with the City of Medical Lake. 

This Vacant Commercial Space may not meet all applicable codes and regulations, which may include 
codes and regulations required to occupy the space for a permitted use in the Central Business 
District. 

The Vacant Commercial Space was registered on [date] 

D.  A responsible person must renew the registration of each vacant commercial space on or 
before January 1st of each year that the space remains vacant. A responsible person must 
submit the renewal application to the city on forms provided by the building official. 

6



E.  Upon satisfactory proof to the building official that the vacant commercial space is occupied 
as defined in Section 14.16.030, the vacant commercial space will be unregistered. Proof of 
physical occupation may include, but is not limited to, usable furniture, office equipment, retail 
inventory or other equipment and inventory in the space that are consistent with the unit’s 
intended use, and persons regularly present at and using the space for its intended use. Proof 
of physical occupancy must also include documentation, which may include, but is not limited 
to, a current, executed lease agreement, paid utility receipts reflecting payments for six 
consecutive months from the month the space is occupied, or valid state and local business 
licenses, federal income tax or city business and occupation tax statements indicating the 
subject space is the official business address of the person or business claiming occupancy. 

F.  The determination of the number of vacant commercial spaces a structure contains will be 
at the reasonable discretion of the building official.  

14.16.060 Window displays for commercial spaces not occupied for 
thirty days. 

When commercial space is unoccupied for more than thirty days, a responsible person must 
take steps to maintain a vibrant streetscape and avoid adverse impacts on neighborhood 
character by applying at least one of the following measures to all ground-floor windows that 
face sidewalks, streets, or public open space: 

A.  Paint windows with visually appealing scenes depicting or suggesting business or cultural 
activities; 

B.  Display works of art or provide other displays of cultural or educational value, using 
background panels or other methods to screen views from the street of the unoccupied space; 

C.  Other measures consistent with these examples approved by the building official.  

14.16.070 Fees for vacant commercial space registration. 
A.  At least one responsible person shall pay an annual registration fee for each registered 
vacant commercial space. At least one responsible person must pay the fee to the city at the 
time the space is registered and on January 1st of each year that the space remains vacant. The 
fee will be based on the duration of the vacancy as determined by the following scale: 

1.  Two hundred fifty dollars for each space vacant for less than one year; 

2.  Five hundred dollars for each space vacant for at least one year but less than two years; 

3.  Seven hundred fifty dollars for each space vacant for at least two years but less than 
three years; 

7



4. One thousand dollars for each space vacant for at least three years and for each year
thereafter until the building is occupied.

B. The fees are intended to defray the costs of administering this section through Section
14.16.120 and may be changed by resolution of the council to meet these costs.

14.16.080 Delinquent registration fees—Collection. 
If a responsible person fails to pay the registration fee by the due date, the city is authorized to 
take action to collect the registration fee, including filing civil actions or turning the matter over 
to collection, in which case costs incurred by the city as a result of the collection process will be 
assessed to the responsible person or responsible persons in addition to the registration fee.  

14.16.090 Duty to amend registration statement. 
Responsible persons for any registered vacant commercial space shall advise the building 
official, in writing, of any changes to the information on the registration form within thirty days 
of the occurrence of the change.  

14.16.100 Inspections. 
The building official (and his designee), or code enforcement officers, or both are authorized to 
conduct inspections to enforce the provisions of this chapter.  

14.16.110 Enforcement. 
A. Enforcement of the provisions of this chapter will be performed in accordance with Chapter
1.01.

B. No responsible person may violate or fail to comply with any provisions of this chapter.
Each responsible person commits a separate offense for each and every day they commit,
continue or permit a violation of any provision of this chapter.

C. All responsible persons for a commercial space are jointly and severally responsible with
respect to that commercial space for compliance with the provisions of this chapter and for any
payments that they may be required to make to the city under this chapter. If the commercial
space is subject to a lease, the city shall have discretion to determine whether to enforce this
chapter against the commercial space owner, the tenant or both of them, but the city shall
consider in this determination whether the lease provides that the compliance with this chapter
is the responsibility of the commercial space owner or the tenant.

8



14.16.120 Annual report. 
The building official shall make a report to the city council in January of every odd year on the 
status of the vacant commercial space registration program.  

 

9



Chapter 9.53 USE AND POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED OR COUNTERFEIT SUBSTANCES OR LEGEND DRUGS 

 

Sec�ons: 

9.53.010 - Defini�ons 
9.53.020 - Unlawful possession of controlled, counterfeit substances or legend drug 
9.53.030 - Permissible possession of cannabis 
9.53.040 - Possession of less than 40 grams of cannabis 
9.53.050 - Unlawful use of controlled or counterfeit substances or legend drug in public 
9.53.060 - Penalty 
9.53.070 - Case resolu�on 
9.53.080 - Preemp�on and savings 
9.53.090 - Severability 
9.53.100 - Effec�ve date 
 
 

Chapter 9.53 USE AND POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED OR COUNTERFEIT SUBSTANCES OR LEGEND DRUGS 

9.53.10 – Defini�ons. 
  
As used in this chapter:  
"Controlled substance" means any controlled substance classified in Schedule I, II, III, IV, or V of chapter 
69.50 RCW, as it now exists or shall herea�er be added to, deleted from, modified, or amended. 
"Counterfeit substance" has the same meaning as “imita�on controlled substance,” as defined in RCW 
69.50.020(3). 
"Legend drug" means any legend drug as defined in RCW 69.41.210(3).  
“Prac��oner” has the same defini�on as in RCW 69.50.101(mm). 
"Public place" means an area generally visible to public view, and includes streets, sidewalks, bridges, 
alleys, plazas, parks, driveways, parking lots, automobiles (whether moving or not), and buildings open 
to the public, and doorways, windows, drive-up windows, and entrances to buildings or dwellings that 
are visible to public view. 
"Use" means any effort taken in furtherance of an atempt to inject, ingest, inhale, or otherwise 
introduce a controlled or counterfeit substance or legend drug into the human body. 
 
9.53.020 – Unlawful possession of controlled, counterfeit substances or legend drug. 
 
It is unlawful for any person to knowingly possess a controlled or counterfeit substance, or legend drug, 
unless the substance was obtained directly from, or pursuant to, a valid prescrip�on or order of a 
prac��oner while ac�ng in the course of his or her professional prac�ce or as otherwise authorized by 
this chapter, state or federal law. The existence of a valid prescrip�on is an affirma�ve defense, provable 
by a preponderance of the evidence. 
 
 
 

10



9.53.030 - Permissible possession of cannabis. 
 
(1) It is not a viola�on of this chapter for an individual twenty-one years of age or older to possess 
cannabis, useable cannabis, cannabis concentrates, or cannabis infused products in amounts that do not 
exceed those listed in RCW 69.50.360(3).   
(2) It is not a viola�on of this chapter for an individual to possess medical cannabis in accordance with 
chapters 69.50 or 69.51A RCW.  
(3) It is not a viola�on of this chapter for an individual to possess cannabis pursuant to a valid license 
issued by the Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Control Board. 
 
9.53.040 - Possession of less than 40 grams of cannabis. 
 
Except as otherwise provided in Chapter 69.50 RCW, knowing possession of less than 40 grams of 
cannabis or knowing possession of cannabis, cannabis-infused product or cannabis concentrates, 
regardless of THC concentra�on, by an individual under the age of twenty-one years, is a misdemeanor 
and, upon convic�on, may be imprisoned for not more than ninety days or fined not more than one 
thousand dollars, or both. 
 
9.53.050 - Unlawful use of controlled or counterfeit substances or legend drug in public. 
 
It is unlawful for any person to knowingly use a controlled or counterfeit substance or legend drug in a 
public place, unless the substance was obtained directly from, or pursuant to, a valid prescrip�on or 
order of a prac��oner while ac�ng in the course of his or her professional prac�ce. The existence of a 
valid prescrip�on is an affirma�ve defense, provable by a preponderance of the evidence. 
 
9.53.060 – Penalty. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, any person who violates this chapter is guilty of a gross misdemeanor and 
upon convic�on may be imprisoned for up to three hundred sixty-four days, or fined not more than five 
thousand dollars, or both.  
 
9.53.070 - Case resolu�on. 
 
(1) Nothing in this chapter prevents the prosecutor from offering pretrial diversion or another alterna�ve 
to prosecu�on, such as a s�pulated order of con�nuance as deemed appropriate. 
 
(2) Nothing in this chapter shall prevent any person charged with an offense herein from par�cipa�ng in 
any specialty court or diversion program for which they would otherwise be eligible. 
 
9.53.080 - Preemp�on and savings. 
 
In the event the Washington State Legislature passes a law preemp�ng this ordinance this ordinance 
shall cease to have effect on the same date the statute comes into effect. Any viola�on of this ordinance 

11



that occurs prior to the preemp�ng statute coming into effect may be prosecuted and punished pursuant 
to this ordinance. 
9.53.090 – Severability. 
 
If any sec�on, word, or words of the ordinance codified in this chapter is found to be uncons�tu�onal or 
otherwise invalid, such uncons�tu�onality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining por�ons of this 
chapter. 
 
9.53.100 - Effec�ve date. 
 
The ordinance codified in this chapter shall take effect and be in force on July 1, 2023. 
 

12



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
                        City Council Regular Meeting and Public Hearing     
                                                                                                             

6:30 PM                                                                                                                     Council Chambers 
May 02, 2023                                                                         MINUTES                         124 S. Lefevre Street 
 
NOTE:  This is not a verbatim transcript. Minutes contain only a summary of the discussion. A recording of the meeting 
is on file and available from City Hall. 
 
COUNCIL AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT     
 
               Councilmembers                                                                                       Administration/Staff 
           Chad Pritchard       Terri Cooper, Mayor    

Don Kennedy                    Sonny Weathers, City Administrator 
Heather Starr                                                                                   Koss Ronholt, Finance Director 

             Art Kulibert                                                            Sean King, City Attorney 
Bob Maxwell        Steve Cooper, WWTP Director 
Ted Olson                                                              Roxanne Wright, Administrative Asst. 
Tony Harbolt                                                                                    Elisa Rodriguez, City Planner 
  
  
        
                                                                                                           

                                                                                                  
        

                   
                                                                                   

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
A. Mayor Cooper called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and conducted 

roll call. All council members were present in person. 
 

B. Councilmember Kennedy submitted an excused absence request for the May 16, 2023, council 
meeting.  

i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Harbolt, seconded by councilmember Maxwell, 
carried 6-0, with councilmember Kennedy not voting. 

 
2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

A. Additions to Agenda  
i. Add section under Action Items 7B: Employment agreement for Glen Horton, Parks and 

Recreation Director. 
ii. Strike word Amendment in title of Resolution 23-589 to now read Senior Yoga Agreement 

1. Motion to accept agenda with changes made by councilmember Kennedy, seconded 
by councilmember Maxwell, carried 7-0. 

 
3. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS 

A. Lahnie Henderson, citizen of Medical Lake – made comments regarding the agenda item workshop 
for the vacant building ordinance. Shared information from prior council meetings on the topic.  

13



4. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
A. May 4, 2023, Day of Prayer Proclamation

i. Mayor Cooper read the proclamation. See attached.

5. REPORTS
A. Council Comments

i. Councilmember Pritchard – brought a poster with results from the recent geo walk that is 
available for citizens to look at if interested. Has it for the STEM night at MLMS 6-7:30 pm on 
May 3, 2023. Shared that over 600 people have RSVP’d for the event.

ii. Councilmember Starr – Park and Recreation committee meeting, 90-95 youth soccer 
participants. Smooth start. Bluegrass Festival permit submitted and approved. The finance 
committee met and went over claims and warrants as usual.

iii. Councilmember Kulibert – no report
iv. Councilmember Kennedy – no report
v. Councilmember Maxwell – no report

vi. Councilmember Olson – no report
vii. Councilmember Harbolt – attended functions at Waterfront Park this weekend. The park 

looks great, new shelter is perfect, fields manicured. Thanked Mr. Duncan and the 
maintenance crew for their hard work.

B. Mayor Comments
i. May 22, 2023, Town Hall meeting at 6 pm to discuss police services.

ii. On Friday, May 5, 2023, will have a meeting with DSHS for lease agreement discussion. DOT 
signs at exits 264 and 262 for Medical Lake business loop. May 31, 2023, is the final day to 
submit applications for the remaining ARPA funds for non-profits and local small businesses. 
Founder’s Day celebration is June 16th and 17th. Golf tournament on Friday the 16th. Go to 
Re*Imagine Medical Lake’s website to sign up. City will have a team participating.

C. City Administrator & City Staff
i. Koss Ronholt, Finance Director – shared Quarter 1 Budget update presentation. See 

attached. Shared that he is currently working on investing into municipal bonds (2.5-3 million 
anticipated to invest).

ii. Sonny Weathers, City Administrator – Filing week is May 15-19, 2023, for running for public 
office; four council seats up for election. Update on the $450,000 Groundwater Study Grant
- met with Ecology, they will draft agreement and bring to council for approval. Recent 
Legislative session secured budget proviso for over $300,000 for the city for Eastern State 
Hospital law enforcement.

6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION
A. Vacant Building Ordinance

i. Mr. Weathers shared presentation and information on what a vacant property ordinance 
might entail, see attached. Councilmember Maxwell shared that he would like to see Liberty 
Lake’s ordinance for comparison. Councilmember Starr had questions about vacant building 
repairs and whether responsibility would fall to the city or property owner. Mr. Weathers 
shared that most ordinances dictate that the responsibility falls to the property owner.

B. Park Advisory Board Ordinance
i. Mayor Cooper shared that she reviewed Cheney’s Park Advisory Board. Usually a five-

member board, Parks and Recreation Director works with them. They oversee programs,

14



activities in the park, and events. Similar to a planning commission. Advisory to the council. 
Councilmember Harbolt would like to learn more about the board in Airway Heights, review 
their ordinance, and get feedback from our new Parks and Recreation Director as he is 
coming from Airway Heights. Mayor Cooper shared that Mr.  Horton will be at the next 
council meeting and can address questions. 

7. ACTION ITEMS
A. Consent Agenda

i. Approve April 18, 2023, minutes.
1. Motion to accept made by councilmember Kennedy, seconded by councilmember

Olson, carried 7-0.
ii. Approve May 2, 2023, Claim Warrants 50076 through 50112 in the amount of $66,782.77. 

1. The Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval of warrants.
Councilmember Starr motioned to approve, seconded by councilmember Olson,
carried 7-0. 

B. Employment Agreement for Glen Horton, Parks and Recreation Director 
i. Mayor Cooper reviewed for council. She would like to add a section to the contract to read

that for each department head, the position is at-will, non-union, and exempt.
1. Motion to approve with additional language made by councilmember Kennedy,

seconded by councilmember Maxwell, carried 7-0.

8. RESOLUTIONS
A. 23-587 Jazzercise Instructor Agreement Amendment

i. Mayor Cooper inquired about adding a section regarding use of city property.
Councilmember Pritchard asked about liability for the city if anyone is injured while
participating. Discussion held. Mayor Cooper would have liked the full original agreement
included in the packet, not just the amendment.

ii. Motion to table both agreements (Resolution 23-587 and 23-589) made by councilmember
Kennedy, seconded by councilmember Harbolt, discussion held, and clarification made that
the agreement for Senior Yoga (Resolution 23-589) does have liability language included.
Councilmember Kennedy amended his motion to only table Resolution 23-587, seconded by
councilmember Harbolt, carried 7-0.

B. 23-589 Senior Yoga Instructor Agreement
i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Kulibert, seconded by councilmember Kennedy,

carried 7-0.

C. 23-590 Wastewater Treatment Plant Pump Repair
i. Steve Cooper, WWTP Director shared information regarding the repair and why it was

needed.
ii. Motion to approve made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember

Kennedy, carried 7-0.

9. PUBLIC HEARING / APPEALS – Application LU 2022-004 TA Shipping Containers
A. Mayor Cooper called the public hearing to order at 7:32 pm.

B. Presentation from Elisa Rodriguez, City Planner. See attached.

15



C. Mr. Stoker shared thoughts and reason behind his request. Brett Lucas, City of Cheney Planner gave 
presentation and handed out Cheney’s Ordinance. See attached.  

i. Discussion held. Mayor Cooper asked if there is sufficient space for fire trucks to access the 
storage containers? Mr. Lucas replied that yes, there is room for them to access if necessary 
and stated that the specific language could be added if desired. Discussion held about 
possible language regarding ancillary vs primary business.  

 
D. Public Comment 

i. Darrin Teichmer, citizen of Medical Lake and owner of local business Tommy G’s – Looks like 
Tommy G’s is not in C1 zone but rather mixed use. Asked that council consider that in their 
decision since he currently uses a shipping container for storage. 

ii. Mason Seigerman, citizen of Medical Lake and MLSD maintenance director - all five 
containers that are currently used by the school district are 20ft. Shared what containers are 
used for and why they hope to keep them. 

iii. Mr. Stoker, citizen of Medical Lake – explained that they requested language for 
fencing/hiding the containers because that was easy for them. Council could keep or adjust 
as they see fit. 

iv. Cliff Denman, citizen of Medical Lake – offered support for the proposed amendment and 
asked the council to consider including residential allowance.  

v. James Shaffer, citizen of Medical Lake – supports Mr. Stoker and the use in residential areas 
as long as there are considerations for aesthetics. 

vi. Grace Dyson, citizen of Medical Lake – supports use in residential area. Currently has a 
shipping container on her property. She has remodeled it to include a door, window, and 
overhang. Hopes to keep it. 

vii. Sarah Denman, citizen of Medical Lake – Offered support for residential use. The price of 
building supplies is prohibitive. Shipping containers are weatherproof, watertight, and 
secure.  

viii. Lahnie Henderson, citizen of Medical Lake – asked about the blue shipping container near 
Redemption Church. Concerned that it was blocking a drain.  

ix. Judy Mayulianos, citizen of Medical Lake – stated that she is a member of the Planning 
Commission but is speaking as citizen. She has driven around and viewed some of the 
shipping containers in town and feels that they are not being taken care of.  

x. Mayor Cooper closed the public hearing at 8:19 pm. 
 

E. Discussion held regarding the decision before council as to how to proceed.  
i. Motion to send back to Planning Commission for new language to allow in commercial and 

school zones made by councilmember Kennedy. Mayor Cooper explained that since the 
Planning Commission has already given their recommendation to deny, the decision will 
remain with City Council. Councilmember Kennedy amended his motion to reject the 
Planning Commission’s recommendation to deny and instead to propose new language, 
seconded by councilmember Kulibert, carried 7-0.  

ii. Mrs. Rodriguez will bring back to the council with new language. Councilmember Harbolt 
requested information from cities that allow containers in residential zones.  

 
10. ORDINANCES  

A. First Read Ordinance 1110 Establishing an Independent Salary Commission 

16



i. Motion to accept first read made by councilmember Maxwell, seconded by councilmember 
Kennedy, carried 7-0.  

ii. Ordinance title read by legal counsel. 
 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None scheduled. 

 
12. EMERGENCY ORDINANCES – No items listed. 

 

13. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS  
A. North Park trailhead 

 
14. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS  

A. Gerri Johnson, citizen of Medical Lake – shared that she is happy we are addressing the vacant 
buildings ordinance. There are two vacant buildings surrounding her business Farm Salvation, that 
have been vacant for seven years. Adversely affects her business. Customers mention the empty 
spaces. Mrs. Johnson also represents Re*Imagine Medical Lake. Shared about Founder’s Day, June 
16-17, Golf Scramble, Friday the 16th at 8am at Fairways Golf course, register online. Friday evening 
at Waterfront Park, kickoff BBQ, cornhole competition, kids’ games, fireworks. Saturday morning, 
parade (new route starting from MLMS, up Lake Street, left on Lefevre). Many vendors have already 
registered. Vendors will be located at STCU, Owl Pharmacy, Farmer’s Market in Cela’s parking lot. 
Live music and a DJ on the main stage. Kid zone, live wrestling, Redemption Church kids’ area.  
 

15. CONCLUSION  
A. Motion to conclude meeting made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember 

Maxwell. Carried 7-0 and meeting concluded at 8:33 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              
             Terri Cooper, Mayor                                       Koss Ronholt, Finance Director/City Clerk 

17



City of Medical Lake 
Proclamation 

 
Day of Prayer – May 4th, 2023 

 
 

WHEREAS, The National Day of Prayer is a tradition first proclaimed by the   
Continental Congress in 1775; and 

 

WHEREAS, In 1863, when civil war stakes were high and divisions ran deep, the 
United States Senate requested President Abraham Lincoln to set apart a day for National 
prayer and humiliation acknowledging our dependence upon the overruling power of God 
where the President declared, those nations only are blessed whose God is the Lord and 
through prayer the Nation will be heard on high, and answered with blessings, and the 
restoration of our now divided and suffering Country;” and  

 

WHEREAS, On June 6, 1944, after the invasion at Normandy, President Franklin 
Roosevelt addressed the nation by radio in prayer, stating, because the road is long and the 
desire is great, I ask that our people devote themselves in a continuance prayer. O Lord, 
give us Faith. Faith in Thee, Faith in our sons, Faith in each other. Lead us to the saving of 
our country into a world of peace that will let all men live in freedom, thy will be done, 
Almighty God; and 
 

WHEREAS, A joint resolution of the Congress approved April 17, 1952, the 
recognition of a particular day to be set aside each year as a National Day of Prayer; and  
 

WHEREAS,  May 7, 1987, President Ronald Reagan issued Proclamation 5594-
National Day of Prayer, stating, “indeed the true meaning of our entire history as a Nation can 
scarcely be glimpsed without some notion of the importance of prayer” and called upon the 
citizens of this Nation to gather together in homes and places of worship to pray, each after 
his or her own manner, for the unity of the hearts of mankind. The following year President 
Reagan signed into law Public Law 100-307 the designation of the first Thursday in May as 
the annual observance of the National Day of Prayer; and  

 

WHEREAS, many local and National leaders feel the Nation continues to face the same 
challenges encountered by those of the historical times mentioned herein.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, T e r r i  C o o p e r ,  Mayor of the City of Medical Lake, 
Washington, in observance of the National Day of Prayer, do hereby declare, Thursday, 
May 4, 2023,  

 

DAY OF PRAYER 
 

in Medical Lake, Washington, and encourage all citizens to pray, each after his or her own 
faith, that God grant us mercy and forgiveness and bring healing and direction to face the 
challenges ahead with courage, wisdom, justice, and loving concern for one another. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the seal of the City of 
Medical Lake to be affixed this 2nd day of May 2023. 
 
 
              
       Terri K. Cooper, Mayor 

18



Budget Report
Quarter 1 – Expected Budget Use: 25%

19



Budget Report Notes

• Current Period – January 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023
• Expected Budget Use (25%) – This is the City’s goal for each category’s 

“Percent Used” column.  
• Salaries & Wages and Benefits for almost every fund is within 3% of 

expected budget use.
• Overall Investment Interest revenues already exceeds total yearly 

estimates by 250-300%
• WCIA Insurance Premiums for entire year are paid in January. 

Premiums were estimated within 1% of actual cost.

20



General Fund
Account Type

Current 
Total Budget 

Period
Activity 

Fiscal
Activity 

Percent
Used

Revenue $2,226,296 $442,527 $442,527 20%

Expense $3,430,419 $1,168,862 $1,168,862 34%

Activity Analysis – Expected Budget Use: 25%
• Revenues are below expected budget use by 5%. The primary cause is the delayed 

nature of property taxes, to be received in Quarter 2.

• Expenditures are over expected budget use by 9%. The primary causes are the payment 
of all WCIA insurance premiums and an intergovernmental ARPA funds transfer occurred 
in January.

21



General Fund Departments
Department

Current 
Total Budget 

Period
Activity 

Fiscal
Activity 

Percent
Used

Legislative $45,017 $11,797 $11,797 26%

Court $60,000 $14,750 $14,750 25%

Executive $211,963 $60,436 $60,436 29%

Legal $63,750 $23,359 $23,359 37%

Admin. Svcs. $389,423 $108,090 $108,090 28%

Code Enforce. $204,495 $42,643 $42,643 21%

Planning $96,492 $20,821 $20,821 22%

22



Special Revenue Funds
Streets

101
Current 

Total Budget 
Period

Activity 
Fiscal

Activity 
Percent

Used
Revenue $244,480 $22,096 $22,096 9%

Expense $264,131 $61,814 $61,814 23%
ARPA 
107

Current 
Total Budget 

Period
Activity 

Fiscal
Activity 

Percent
Used

Revenue $858,422 $864,282 $864,283 101%

Expense $750,000 $261,335 $261,335 35%
Public Safety

110
Current

Total Budget 
Period

Activity 
Fiscal

Activity 
Percent

Used
Revenue $1,201,136 $51,887 $51,887 4%

Expense $1,155,673 $15,516 $15,516 1%

23



Special Revenue Funds (cont.)
Parks & Rec.

112
Current 

Total Budget 
Period

Activity 
Fiscal

Activity 
Percent

Used
Revenue $362,250 $8,885 $8,885 2%

Dept.: Parks & Rec. $173,926 $17,370 $17,370 10%
Dept.: Parks 
Facilities $180,858 $48,591 $48,591 27%

City Beautification 
125

Current 
Total Budget 

Period
Activity 

Fiscal
Activity 

Percent
Used

Revenue $6,500 $1,620 $1,620 25%

Expense $4,000 $0 $0 0%

24



Proprietary Funds
Water
401

Current 
Total Budget 

Period
Activity 

Fiscal
Activity 

Percent
Used

Revenue $843,050 $160,759 $160,759 19%

Expense $1,689,161 $1,017,417 $1,017,417 60%
Solid Waste

407
Current

Total Budget 
Period

Activity 
Fiscal

Activity 
Percent

Used
Revenue $667,010 $173,291 $173,291 26%

Expense $706,924 $133,357 $133,357 19%
Wastewater

408
Current 

Total Budget 
Period

Activity 
Fiscal

Activity 
Percent

Used
Revenue $1,380,500 $518,110 $518,110 38%

Dept.: WWC $408,283 $100,584 $100,584 25%

Dept.: WWT $918,038 $263,736 $263,736 29%
Note: The Water Fund (401) made large transfers to the new Water/Wastewater
Managerial funds to manage the transition and separation of the two funds.
Without these transfers, the operating budget is at 18% of expected use.

25



Thanks!

26



Vacant Property Ordinance
City of Medical Lake

27



Establish minimum maintenance requirements

Vacant commercial space registration

Window displays for commercial spaces not 
occupied for thirty days

Fees for vacant commercial space registration

Inspections

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



LU 2022-004 TA
Text amendment to allow shipping 

containers in the Commercial (C-1) Zone

35



PROCESS

HISTORY

• Application Submitted - October 26, 2022

• Deemed Complete - November 22

• PC Workshops - January 26 & February 23

• SEPA Determination - March 8

• Notice of Application - March 8

• PC Public Hearing - March 23

• PC Recommendation to Deny - March 23

• CC Workshop - April 18

CC Considers Approval

Ordinance written for 
consideration

CC Denies

Applicant must remove 
shipping containers

OR

TODAY

• CC Public Hearing – May 2

36



APPLICATION

• Currently, shipping containers are prohibited
except for active construction sites.

• Larry Stoker, owner of Monark Self-Storage

• Requesting a change to the Medical Lake
Municipal Code to Allow Shipping
Containers in the Commercial Zone, C-1

• Shipping Containers are the applicant’s
response to the increased price of
construction materials, a change in the
economy due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

• Approval would amend MLMC Section
17.42.030 – Shipping containers as storage
buildings prohibited

37



EXISTING 
TEXT

17.42.030 - Shipping containers as storage 
buildings prohibited.

Unless otherwise permitted by this title, no person 
shall place or cause to be placed, or use or permit 
the use of any shipping container as an accessory 
building, storage building, living unit or any other 
such primary or accessory building upon any 
property within the city limits of Medical Lake; 
provided, that licensed and bonded contractors 
may utilize said containers for temporary housing 
of equipment and/or materials during 
construction as authorized by a city building 
permit. For the purposes of this chapter, "shipping 
container" is defined as any container or other 
device used or designed for use in the 
transportation industry.

(Ord. 876 §135, 1999).
38



PROPOSED 
TEXT

A. Unless otherwise permitted by this title, no person shall 
place or cause to be placed, or use or permit the use of any 
shipping container as an accessory building, storage building, 
or living units within the city limits of Medical Lake except in 
the [C-1] zones.

1. Shipping containers are permitted to be placed within 
the [C-1] zones as accessory buildings or storage units, 
provided that the containers are no more than 40 feet in 
length, maintained and in good shape (i.e., painted, not 
rusted out), and are located in the rear/back of property or 
enclosed in a fence and visually obscured from public sight 
ROW on Hwy 902.  Containers may be placed as authorized 
by a city building permit.

B. Licensed and bonded contractors may utilize shipping 
containers for temporary housing of equipment and/or 
materials during construction as authorized by a city building 
permit. For purposes of this chapter “shipping container” is 
defined as any container or other device used or designed for 
use in the transportation industry

39



SEPA

DETERMINATION OF MITIGATED NON-
SIGNIFICANCE

• SEPA Environmental Checklist

• Non-project proposal

• Section D, #5, Is the proposal compatible
with existing land use?

• Mitigation: Must mitigate for aesthetic of
the shipping container.

40



APPROVAL 
CRITERIA

TO SUMMARIZE:

• Does this resolve inconsistencies?

• Does this further implement the
comprehensive plan?

• Does this address changed conditions?

• Does this help a depleted land supply?

• Is this consistent with comprehensive plan?

• Is this consistent with the County and GMA?

• Is this complementary and compatible with
adjacent land uses?

• Does this adversely affect critical areas?

41



AGENCY & 
PUBLIC 
COMMENT

The Spokane Regional Health District stated 
that a container should not be placed over a 
septic tank or drain field.

Darin Teichmer, owner of Tommy-G’s, said he 
has had a small shipping container at his 
business for around two years, has never 
received a violation, and hopes to keep it.

Nolan Davis, a Medical Lake realtor, 
expressed his support for the text 
amendment. 

Jennifer Speirs, a Medical Lake resident, 
expressed opposition to the text amendment, 
citing how the applicant acted without 
checking the regulations first and now wants 
accommodation to help the “bottom line” of 
his business.

42



PLANNING 
COMMISSION 
DECISION

• The Planning Commission believes the 
proposal is not in line with the goals of the 
Medical Lake Comprehensive Plan.

• The Planning Commission recommends 
denial of the proposed text amendment with 
findings as presented in the staff report.

43



TONIGHT

What to consider for your decision:

• Planning Commission Recommendation

• Public Comment

• Approval Criteria

• Comprehensive Plan

44



City of Medical Lake
City Council

5/2/23
45



46



 LU 2022-004 TA, Proposal to amend MLMC 
Section 7.42.020 to allow shipping 
containers under certain circumstances

47



48



49



Monarch
Self 
Storage

50



Monarch
Self 
Storage

51



Monarch
Self 
Storage

52



Monarch
Self 
Storage

53



Across the 
street from 
RJR Tractor

54



Bruchi’s

55



Security

56



 They can work, provided there are some 
screening and location criteria
 Shipping containers shall be only allowed in the 

Light Industrial, Public Institutional, and 
Commercial Zones (except CBD).
 Shipping containers shall be ancillary to the 

primary business, and shall be used only for the 
storage of dry goods or tools.  No storage of 
perishable or hazardous materials.
 Shipping containers shall be pained a compatible 

color as the primary business.

57



 Shipping container and exterior paint shall 
remain in good repair and free of rust.
 Shipping containers shall be placed on an all-

weather surface (concrete or asphalt) or hard 
packed gravel.
 Shipping containers shall be located only in the 

rear or side portions of the property and visually 
screened (fencing, vegetation, etc.) from the 
primary roadway. 
 Shipping containers shall not cover more than 

10% of the subject site.
 Shipping containers may be inspected by the fire 

marshal, at the discretion of the fire department.
58



59



60



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
                                     City Council Regular Meeting      
                                                                                                            

6:30 PM                                                                                                                     Council Chambers 
April 18, 2023                                                                   MINUTES                         124 S. Lefevre Street 
 
NOTE:  This is not a verbatim transcript. Minutes contain only a summary of the discussion. A recording of the meeting 
is on file and available from City Hall. 
 
COUNCIL AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT     
 
               Councilmembers                                                                                       Administration/Staff 
           Chad Pritchard       Sonny Weathers, City Administrator 

Don Kennedy                    Koss Ronholt, Finance Director 
Heather Starr                                                                                   Elisa Rodriguez, City Planner 

             Art Kulibert (via Zoom)                                Sean King, City Attorney 
Bob Maxwell        Scott Duncan, Public Works Director 
Ted Olson                                                              Steve Cooper, WWTP Director 
Tony Harbolt                                                                                     
  
  
        
                                                                                                           

                                                                                                  
        

                   
                                                                                   

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
A. Mayor Cooper was not present. Councilmember Kennedy acted as Mayor Pro Tem and called the 

meeting to order at 6:30 pm, led the Pledge of Allegiance and conducted roll call. All council 
members were present, with councilmember Kulibert present via Zoom.  

i. Made a retroactive approval of councilmember Pritchard’s absence from the April 4, 2023, 
council meeting. Motioned by councilmember Harbolt, seconded by councilmember Olson, 
carried 6-1 with councilmember Pritchard abstaining. 

 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 
A. Additions to Agenda 

i. Added Resolution 23-588 – ESRI Service Agreement as item 8.E. Motioned by 
councilmember Harbolt, seconded by councilmember Pritchard, carried 7-0. 

B. Motion to approve agenda made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember 
Maxwell, carried 7-0.  

 
3. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS 

A. None 
 
 
 

61



4. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS  
A. Karl Otterstrom with Spokane Transit Authority gave a presentation on STA’s 10-year strategic plan, 

Connect 2035. Discussion held. 
 

5. REPORTS 
A. Public Safety - Councilmember Olson reported that assaults decreased, language is being drafted 

with Spokane County for Sheriff’s contracts, unauthorized camping resolved, code enforcement 
officer Dave Yuhas hired, more SCOPE involvement.  

i. FD3 - helped with Fool’s Run at Midnight, three new volunteer firefighters, Saturday is the 
Fisherman’s Breakfast (4am-noon), STEPS Printing and ROAM Roasters helped and donated. 
Harvest Foods donated food, etc.  

 
B. Council Comments 

i. Councilmember Pritchard – Shared that the Spokane County Housing and Community 
Development Advisory Committee (HCDAC) was awarded 2 million dollars, Food Bank on list 
for 100k. Reported on the recent Geo walk around Medical Lake where community 
members cleaned up trash and sampled water. Shared that on May 3rd, Medical Lake Middle 
School will host a STEM career night at 6pm.  

ii. Councilmember Starr – Finance Committee discussed GIS software, reported that the 
garbage fee study is progressing, and the staff time study is underway. 

iii. Councilmember Maxwell – General Government Committee discussed getting signs for the 
business loop, vacant property ordinance in the works. Reported that the Vactor truck is 
paying for itself (estimated 12k already) and the Baker Street project will be starting soon. 

iv. Councilmember Olson - Shared that on April 19, 2023, wellness clinic will hold a free 
meeting regarding students’ mental health. Meeting is open to the public 3:30-5:30pm. 

v. Councilmember Harbolt - no report 
vi. Councilmember Kulibert: attended a Bluegrass Festival headline group. Shared excitement 

about grants that they acquired and conducted survey to acquire more grants for future 
years.  
 

C. Mayor Pro Tem Kennedy – No comment 
 

D. City Administrator & City Staff –  
i. Mr. Weathers – shared that the Legislative session ends on April 24, 2023. He will attend the 

AWC conference in Spokane in May. Shared about the groundwater agreement. Shared 
about the recent Community Garden meeting. 

 
6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION  

A. Application LU 2022-004 TA Shipping Containers  
i. City Planner, Elisa Rodriguez gave a presentation regarding the application.  

ii. Applicant Larry Stoker provided input on his request. Apologized for not being aware of 
code violation. Monark is making visual improvements. Used to have RV storage, now is 
using storage containers in lieu of RVs. Painting and upkeeping shipping containers. Can 
keep rates lower when using shipping containers. Containers are much more secure. They 
are housed in the back of the facility, not very visible. Willing to make adjustments if needed 
or if the law is changed. Researched what some other communities are doing regarding 
shipping containers and reported that they are allowed in some cities. Shared that it would 
cost close to $100,000 to remove containers. Asking for fair review of the application. 

iii. Brett Lucas, City Planner for City of Cheney. Asked by Mr. Stoker to talk about the City of 
Cheney’s recent planning developments. 5 years ago, the city began allowing PODS. 

62



McDonald’s began using a shipping container for dry storage because of supply chain issues 
and reduced cost. Shared that shipping containers are used throughout Spokane. Another 
business added screening to prevent visibility of the shipping container. Plenty of code 
options to improve visual appeal or screening of shipping containers. Only allowed in 
Cheney’s C2 and industrial zoning, not in residential zones. Cheney ensures that code 
enforcement manages paint and maintenance of containers. Spokane County does allow 
shipping containers.   

 
7. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Consent Agenda 
i. Approve April 4, 2023, minutes.  

1. Motion to approve made by councilmember Harbolt, seconded by councilmember 
Pritchard, carried 7-0. 

ii. Approve April 18, 2023, Payroll Claim Warrants 50027 through 50034 and Payroll Payable 
Warrants 20197 through 20203 in the amount of $134,779.79 and Claim Warrants 50035 
through 50075 in the amount of $120,515.24.  

1. Motion to approve made by councilmember Starr, seconded by councilmember 
Maxwell, carried 7-0. 

 
B. Support for Joint Statement Addressing Homelessness Regionally.  

i. Discussion held.  
ii. Motion to approve made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember Starr, 

carried 7-0. 
 

8. RESOLUTIONS 
A. 23-583 Broadlinc Agreement 

i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember 
Maxwell, carried 7-0. 
 

B. 23-584 Managed IT Services Agreement with Executech 
i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Starr, seconded by councilmember Olson, 

carried 7-0. 
 

C. 23-585 Criminal Histories MOU (Spokane County) 
i. Motion to approve with correction to the word “County” in the title made by 

councilmember Harbolt, seconded by councilmember Pritchard, carried 7-0.  
 

D. 23-586 Energy Savings Contract with Apollo.  
i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Starr, seconded by councilmember Olson, 

carried 7-0. 
 

E. (Added item) 23-588 ESRI Service Agreement  
i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember 

Maxwell, carried 7-0. 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING / APPEALS – No items listed. 
 
 

63



 
10. ORDINANCES  

A. Second Read Ordinance 1109 Complete Streets.  
i. Motion to approve made by councilmember Starr, seconded by councilmember Harbolt, 

carried 6-1 with councilmember Kennedy voting nay. 
 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None scheduled. 

 
12. EMERGENCY ORDINANCES – No items listed. 

 

13. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS  
 

14. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS  
A. Lance Speirs, Medical Lake resident – Encouraged council and community to pay attention to 90 day 

homelessness study and to get the whole county together. 
 

15. CONCLUSION  
A. Motion to conclude meeting made by councilmember Pritchard, seconded by councilmember 

Harbolt. Motion carried 7-0 and meeting concluded at 8:15 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              
             Terri Cooper, Mayor                                       Koss Ronholt, Finance Director/City Clerk 

64



December XX, 2022 
 
 
Marlene Feist, Public Works Director 
City of Spokane 
808 W Spokane Falls Blvd 
Spokane, WA  99201 
 
Re: City of Medical Lake 
 Spokane-Medical Lake Water Intertie 
 Request for Additional Water Service 
 
Dear Ms. Feist, 
During the past various zoom meetings regarding the water service to Louisiana Pacific (LP), the City of 
Medical Lake indicated that it would provide Four Lakes Water District No. 10 their requested additional 
50 gpm, but it was indicated that the City of Spokane could not immediately provide an additional 50 gpm 
to the City of Medical Lake due to planning, infrastructure needs, and Spokane City Council approval issues.  
It was decided that the City of Medical Lake had enough capacity in our system to supply Four Lakes during 
the ‘interim’ (10-yr.±) period until Spokane was able to serve LP directly and increase flow to the City of 
Medical Lake. 
 
We understand that coming to an agreement for receiving additional water from the City of Spokane 
through the Spokane-Medical Lake Intertie is potentially a long process.  Therefore, we would like to initiate 
discussions of eventually increasing the available flow from this intertie into the City of Medical Lake now 
to get the process started.  Our current agreement is for 200 gpm of continuous flow and 600 gpm, upon 
notification, for emergency use.  Although Medical Lake may not have an immediate need for an increase 
in flow, we would like to have it in place prior to a need that strains our system.  Medical Lake is seeking to 
increase this flow to 1,000 gpm of continuous flow and 2,000 gpm, upon notification, for emergency use.  
Obviously, these numbers are for long term growth and/or having to serve Eastern State Hospital, but we 
want to aim for these numbers to assist Spokane in planning for the various infrastructure improvements 
mentioned in the zoom meetings. 
 
Please contact us should questions or concerns arise, and we look forward to your response. 
 
 
 

 

  

65



rH,S FORVTS,NTENDED FORUSE BYLOCALAUTIIORnES HAVINO JUNSACnON (AHJ),NTHE E!/€NTTHEY DO NOTHA1iq-APERMTT
FORM SPECIFIC FOR REINL FTREWORKS SATES Ar A CANSUMER F|REI{ORKS REri[ SAIES rcFRS) FACILIIY'. tr tS Nor MEANT TO BE

REQUIRED IN ADDITION TO OR IN LIEU OF ANY LOC/,L p€]RMTNNG FORMANOOF PROC€SS-NTATMAYEflSTWIT?I THE LOCALAHJ.

Dhectlensl Provlded lhc locrl Jurfudlctlor hEr no
Retell Flreworh $trnd Lisdre to the Ju&dlcthn

owr, coryl€to flth pornlt rppllcoalon rnd rubnrlt lt wlal tle locd AIU porthn ofyour
l0n

pmltformof thdr
ln nhich yeu wbl 0o

WASHINGTON STATE
FIREWORKS RETAIL SALES PERMIT APPLICATION

certfi the lnformafon ln fils appllcatlon ls true and corect. I am aware of and agroe to comply with all relevant
of law, rula, and any ordinanoo of the state of Wmhingfion and he clty/county permK{ng flris CFRS Faclllty,

JACK HUCHES 03126t2023
Prltttod NsnF of Polnlt Applkent D* of Slgnature

fHEFFlF}flORI$FEri[ER[,CF,VSEHOLOER$/cEI/'SEE)SHALL8ETANT'i](SFEnH'rWEHTHEASSOCiAnEOHREWORK nETAil.fjR
LICETJSE AIID IAKE THEN &TH AUA'IABI.E FAR NSPECNOil AT AN\I T"E ?}G STAflD 

'g 
N OPENAT/0/N

Aoollcant lnformafion fl NeWFinst Tlme Appllcant [l Previous Pormft Holder

J&M LLC

HUGHES JACK 3t4lr9s8

PO BOX 603 wA 98844

( 50e ) 322-s618 maryhughes34ll@gmail.com 
_

E,ilel Addrees
s09 322-s618

PhonCl{umFr

CFR$ Faelllg lnformadon I Stand n fent Other: Slzo: 400 square feet
qnataFeemmenr6nr-I u.

qpcalfy

d 2-

4il7 Of 'r4tnrctz- t'/*' -' Namo of Proporty Ownor
() ./1!*l . tz/t

Prcsl Nrmberfor Stand Loca0onPhono Numbir

Flrewgrks Sgopltsr lnformatlon Llst all of tha lhensed flreworks wholesahrs who will be suppffiS thls stand prduct

J&M LLC PO BOX 603 OROVILLE, WA 98844

LICENSB #C-U267

Storaqe lnformatlon

fls"l"" Structure

./ on Slte f] or6n",

I O"t".tr"O Bullding r' Truc*/Tralbr Other:
8peory

CHECKLIST FOR SUBilISSION Check with the local AHJ for all appllcable submlssion dafes and deadllnes:

[f npprc"Uon/Psrmlt Feo @ h"ur"noe Csrtlflcate ($1,000,000] n Ctean-tlp Bond Fee (tf appficable]

[l VAU Washington State Flr€works Retaller Llcense [| eroperty Owners Wrltlen Permleeion

t/ Detalled Slte Plan f tnt tlor Plan (requlred for tents and 'otheP facilitles)

Co.(tre *.3

ck4V:

3q00.120.o13 (R r il10)

X

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-587 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE EXTENDING 

THE AGREEMENT WITH JULIE BUTLER TO INSTRUCT JAZZERCISE 
CLASSES FOR THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake (“City”) entered into an Agreement with 
Julie Butler (“Service Provider”) of Cheney, WA, to provide Jazzercise instruction services 
to the community through the Park’s and Recreation Department on September 6, 2022, to 
expire on or around December 31, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Service Provider has continued to provide services to the 
community consistent with the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement since the 
Agreement’s expiration; and 

WHEREAS, the parties are desirous of extending the Agreement through 2024; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Service Provider have prepared an Addendum to the 
Agreement between the City of Medical Lake, Washington and the Service Provider 
(“Agreement”) to continue providing services through May 31, 2024. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Approval. The City Council hereby approves of the Addendum to 
the Agreement between the City of Medical Lake and Julie Butler of Cheney, WA, as set 
forth in the attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein. 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
resolution should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution. 

Section 3. Effective Date.   This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
passage by the City of Medical Lake City Council. 

 

ADOPTED this __16th__ day of May, 2023. 

 

 

   Terri Cooper, Mayor 

 

 

 75



Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Koss Ronholt, City Clerk    Sean P. Boutz, City Attorney 

76



ADDENDUM NO. 1 

On or around September 6, 2022, the City of Medical Lake, Washington, a municipal corporation, 
and Julie Butler (“Service Provider”) entered into an Instructor Contract to provide certain 
Jazzercise classes and instruction to the community through the City of Medical Lake’s Parks & 
Recreation Department (“Agreement”). 

Under the terms of the Agreement (Section 2), it was set to expire on or around December 31, 
2022.  Service Provider has continued to provide services to the community consistent with the 
terms and conditions contained in the Agreement since the Agreement’s expiration. 

The Parties are desirous of continuing the relationship and memorializing an extension of the 
Agreement, since the date of its expiration and into the future. 

The Parties, therefore, wish to extend the term of the Agreement as set forth herein and as 
previously described in Section 2 of the Agreement.  Section 2 of the Agreement is hereby 
amended as follows: 

The dates identified in Section 2 of the Agreement are changed to: September 2022 to May 31, 
2024. 

All of the terms, covenants, and conditions in the Agreement shall remain in full force and effective 
throughout the extended term of the Agreement as if fully set forth herein. 

Effective this _16th__ day of May, 2023. 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 

By: _______________________ 
Mayor Terri Cooper 

SERVICE PROVIDER 

 By:________________________ 
Julie Butler 

77



78



79



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-591 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE APROVING A 

COMMERCIAL TANK CLEANING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MIDCO 
DIVING & MARINE SERVICES, INC FOR THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, 

WASHINGTON 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake (“City”) must clean it’s one and a half- 
million gallon water tank every three years; and 

WHEREAS, City Staff recommends purchasing this service through Midco Diving 
& Marine Service, Inc (“Service Provider”); and 

WHEREAS, the Service Provider has submitted a proposal to perform the required 
cleaning services for a total of four thousand one hundred twenty-one dollars and eighty-
seven cents ($4,121.87). 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON as follows: 

Section 1.  Approval of Agreement. The Council hereby approves the 
Agreement in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A”, and by reference 
incorporated herein. 

Section 2.  Authorization. The Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of the City in substantially the form attached as Exhibit “A”. The 
Mayor and Finance Director/City Clerk are each hereby authorized and directed to take 
such further action as may be appropriate in order to affect the purpose of this Resolution 
and the Agreement authorized hereby. 

Section 3.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Resolution should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution. 

Section 4.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon its adoption. 

 
.  

ADOPTED this _16th  day of __May__, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

   Mayor, Terri Cooper 

 80



 

 

 
Attest:      Approved as to Form: 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Finance Director, Koss Ronholt   City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 

81



82



83



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-592 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE ENTERING INTO 

A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH US BANK TO PROVIDE 
BANKING AND SAFEKEEPING ACCOUNT SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF 

MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake (“City”) desires to invest a portion of its 
municipal funds into securities through TVI Investments; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 39.58.080, cities are required to bank with a 
qualified public depositary; and 

WHEREAS, TVI Investments requires the City to open a safekeeping account for 
any and all transactions related to the purchase, distribution of dividends, and maturity of 
securities; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends opening a safekeeping account through US 
Bank; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON as follows: 
 
The City Clerk/Clerk Treasurer is authorized on behalf of and in the name of the City 

of Medical Lake, (a) to direct, orally or in writing or electronically or through any other 
medium agreed to by said officer(s) and the Corporate Treasury Division of U.S. Bank N.A. 
("Treasury"), the opening of an investment account and the investment of municipal funds in 
securities and/or time deposits with and/or through the Treasury through such account; (b) to 
execute, on behalf of the corporation, contracts or agreements in connection with such 
investment account in the usual form provided by the Treasury for such accounts generally; 
(c) to receive in respect of said investment account confirmations, receipts, notices, demands, 
reports, and communications of any kind; (d) to receive in respect of said investment account 
money, securities, time deposits, and property of every kind, and to dispose of same; (e) to 
endorse and deliver for deposit, negotiation, transfer, pledge, or sale, and to identify or 
guarantee signatures or endorsements on, notes, certificates of deposit, checks, and securities 
of all kinds, either belonging to or coming into the possession of the City; and (f) to authorize, 
orally or in writing or through any other medium agreed to by said officer(s) and the Treasury, 
the debiting and/or crediting by the Treasury of the City’s deposit account(s) at any financial 
institution for the purpose of effecting such transaction. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk/Clerk Treasurer is authorized and directed to 
certify to the Treasury the foregoing resolutions and that the provisions thereof are in 
conformity with the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of this municipality and to certify 
to the Treasury the names of the persons now holding the offices referred to above and any 
changes hereafter in the persons holding said offices together with specimens of the signature 
of such present and future officers. 
 
 84



FURTHER RESOLVED, that the authority granted to the City Clerk/Clerk Treasurer shall 
continue in full force and effect, and the Treasury may rely thereon in dealing with such 
officers, unless and until written notice of any change in or revocation of such authority shall 
be delivered to the Treasury by an officer or director of the City, and any action taken by said 
officers and relied on by the Treasury pursuant to the authority granted herein to its receipt of 
such written notice shall be fully and conclusively binding on this corporation. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the actions of any officer of the City heretofore taken in 
opening an investment account with the Treasury and in the investment of municipal funds 
through such account, be, and the same hereby are in all respects, ratified, confirmed, and 
approved. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that all prior resolutions of the City authorizing the opening of an 
investment account with the Treasury and the investment of corporate funds through such 
account, be, and the same hereby are, rescinded and superseded as to all such transactions 
with respect thereto effected after the date of adoption of these resolutions. 

  
ADOPTED this ______ day of ________________, 2023. 

 

 

   Mayor, Terri Cooper 

 
Attest:      Approved as to Form: 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________ 
Finance Director, Koss Ronholt   City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-593 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE APPROVING 

LAND LEASE AMENDMENT NO. 3 BETWEEN THE STATE OF 
WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL HEALTH SERVICES AND THE 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake and State of Washington Department of 
Social Health Services (“DSHS”) previously entered into a Lease Agreement under Lease 
Number 2176-99164 (“Lease”) to lease certain real property as set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake and DSHS are desirous of amending the 
Lease pursuant to the attached Land Lease Amendment No. 3 contained in Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, Land Lease Amendment No. 3 identifies the revisions to be made to 
the Lease. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON as follows: 

Section 1.  Approval of Agreement. The Council hereby approves Land Lease 
Amendment No. 3 in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A” and by reference 
incorporated herein. 

Section 2.  Authorization. The Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the 
Land Lease Amendment No. 3 on behalf of the City in substantially the form attached as 
Exhibit “A”. The Mayor and Finance Director/City Clerk are each hereby authorized and 
directed to take such further action as may be appropriate in order to affect the purpose of 
this Resolution and the Land Lease Amendment No. 3 authorized hereby. 

Section 3.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Resolution should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution. 

Section 4.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon its adoption. 

 
.  

ADOPTED this 16th day of May, 2023. 

 

       _______________________________ 
       Mayor Terri Cooper 

 

 
 
 93



Attest:       
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk, Koss Ronholt    
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
________________________________ 
City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 

94



DSHS No. 6776-57784-03 

 

LAND LEASE AMENDMENT No. 3 
BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL HEALTH SERVICES  

AND 
THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 

 

This Lease Amendment No. 3 modifies Lease Number 6776-57784 between the State of 
Washington, Department of Social and Health Services, hereinafter called the Lessor and the 
City of Medical Lake, hereinafter called the Lessee and will become effective upon full execution 
by the parties. 

Premise: The Lessor hereby leases to the Lessee the following described lands situated in 
Spokane County, Washington, to wit: 

That portion of the NW ¼, Section 19, Township 24 North, Range 41 East, W.M., lying north 
and west of the (Medical Lake-Tyler Road) State Highway No. 902; and also that portion of the 
NE ¼ NE ¼, Section 24, Township 24 North, Range 40 East, W.M., lying south of stone pillars 
of entrance to Eastern Washington State Hospital described as follows: The south 980 feet of 
the east 1,046.55 feet lying east of the approach road to Eastern Washington State Hospital 
except the west 30 feet and the south 30 feet thereof for road purposes. 

The above described lands contain an area of 45.0 acres, more or less. 

No other property owned by DSHS shall be used for any purpose by the Lessee, unless 
otherwise contracted to do so under a separate agreement.   

By Agreement of the above parties, the purpose of this Lease Amendment is to revise the 
original Lease Agreement as follows: 

1. To delete the language in section 1. Occupancy of the original Lease and replace it in 
its entirety with the following new language:  1. Occupancy The lease shall begin 
11/01/1967 and terminate on 12/31/2023, unless terminated sooner as provided herein. 

All other terms, conditions covenants, and amendments to this Lease, unless specifically altered, 
modified, or changed herein, remain in full force and effect 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment is executed on the latest date by the persons signing 
below, who warrant that they have the authority to execute the Amendment.  

 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE:  DEPARTMENT OF SOC IAL & HEALTH 
SERVICES:   

 

 
  

Signature  Signature 
 

Terri Cooper 
  

Jeanne Rodriguez 
Print Name  Print Name 
 

Mayor 
  

Capital Assets Manager 
Title  Title 
 

 
  

Date  Date 

95



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-594 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE APPROVING AN 

ADDENDUM TO THE WATER PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE AND THE STRATHVIEW WATER DISTRICT #16 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake and Strathview Water District #16 (“SWD”) 
previously entered into a Water Purchase Agreement Between the City of Medical Lake 
and the Strathview Water District #16 (“Agreement”) to provide potable water to SWD as 
set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake and SWD are desirous of amending the 
Agreement under an Addendum No. 1; and 

WHEREAS, Addendum No. 1 identifies the revisions to be made to the 
Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON as follows: 

Section 1.  Approval of Agreement. The Council hereby approves Addendum 
No. 1 in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A” and by reference incorporated 
herein. 

Section 2.  Authorization. The Mayor is authorized and directed to execute 
Addendum No. 1 on behalf of the City in substantially the form attached as Exhibit “A”. 
The Mayor and Finance Director/City Clerk are each hereby authorized and directed to take 
such further action as may be appropriate in order to affect the purpose of this Resolution 
and Addendum No. 1 authorized hereby. 

Section 3.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Resolution should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution. 

Section 4.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon its adoption. 

 
.  

ADOPTED this _____ day of ________, 2023. 

 

       _______________________________ 
       Mayor Terri Cooper 

 

 
 
 96



Attest:       
 
 
___________________________________ 
Finance Director/City Clerk, Koss Ronholt    
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
________________________________ 
City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 

97



ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

On or around January 16, 2019, the City of Medical Lake, Washington, a municipal corporation 
(“City”), entered into a Water Purchase Agreement Between the City of Medical Lake and the 
Strathview Water District # 16 (“Agreement”) to provide Strathview Water District #16 (“SWD”) 
with potable water under the terms contained in the Agreement. 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement originally provided for a term of three (3) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, after expiration of the original term the parties continued to perform consistent with 
the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement, including and up to the execution of this 
Addendum No. 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, by this Addendum No. 1, the parties acknowledge and accept that such performance 
since the expiration of the original term was pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties are desirous of extending the Agreement for an additional five (5) years 
and memorializing an extension, including updating certain terms and conditions as contained 
herein. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 
 

1. The Agreement is extended for an additional five (5) years from the effective date of this 
Addendum No. 1; and 
 

2. Section 7 of the Agreement is revised to read as follows: 
 
PRICE.  Strathview shall pay the City $1.40 per thousand gallons delivered to Strathview.  
Such price shall be adjusted from time to time by the action of the Medical Lake City 
Council based upon yearly operating and maintenance costs.  Increases or decreases in 
water rates applicable to Strathview shall be effective on notice to Strathview following 
adoption by the Medical Lake City Council in the same manner as increases or decreases 
in rates are applicable to City customers. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, in the event the City is required to obtain, acquire, purchase or 
procure water from another source, entity, or jurisdiction, including but not limited to the 
City of Spokane, due to circumstances beyond the City’s control or excess demand from 
Strathview, Strathview shall pay to the City the then current rate per thousand of gallons 
charged to the City for the water received plus twenty-five percent (25%).  Such price shall 
be effective immediately upon receipt of the water by the City and paid by Strathview until 

98



such time as the City is able to fully supply the necessary water under the terms of the 
Agreement. 

 
All of the terms, covenants, and conditions in the Agreement shall remain in full force and effective 
throughout the extended term of the Agreement as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 
Effective this ___ day of May, 2023. 
 
 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
 
 
 
By: _______________________ 
 Mayor Terri Cooper 
 
 
STRATHVIEW WATER DISTRICT #16 
 
 
 
 By:________________________ 
 President of the Board 

99



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 1110 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
AND REPEALING VARIOUS SECTIONS AND SUBSECTIONS OF TITLE 2, 

CHAPTER 2.16 OF THE MEDICAL LAKE MUNICIPAL CODE AND ESTABLISHING 
AN INDEPENDENT SALARY COMMISSION IN ORDER TO SET THE SALARIES OF 

ELECTED OFFICIALS, PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT AND TERMS OF 
COMMISSION MEMBERS AND FOR THE REMOVAL OF SAME, ESTABLISHING 
EFFECTIVE DATES FOR SALARY INCREASES AND DECREASES APPROVED BY 

THE COMMISSION, SUBJECT TO REFERENDUM, PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.12.070 provides that elective officials salaries are to be set by 

ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake (“City”) is authorized pursuant to RCW 35.21.015 

to establish an independent salary commission and delegate authority to set the salaries for City 
Councilmembers and the Mayor to such a commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, City of Medical Lake Municipal Code (“MLMC”) 2.16 contains regulations 

pertaining to the salaries of the Mayor and City Councilmembers; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 669 established how the salary of the office of Mayor and each 
member of City Council shall be set in the City’s salary ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the current salaries for elected officials have not been adjusted in over seven 

(7) years, as set forth in Ordinance No. 1045 adopted on December 15, 2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined to create an independent salary commission 
for the purpose of setting salaries of the Mayor and City Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Medical Lake, Washington does 
ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Amendment/Commission Creation. MLMC 2.16 Salaries is hereby 
amended and repealed, where applicable, and an independent salary commission is hereby created 
for the purpose of setting the salaries of the Mayor and City Councilmembers as set forth in Exhibit 
A to this Ordinance.  The official name of the Commission shall be the Medical Lake Salary 
Commission. 
 
 Section 2. Ratification. Any act consistent with the authority and prior to the 
effective date of this Ordinance is hereby ratified and affirmed. 
 
 Section 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 
should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity 
or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 4. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 

100



after publication of this Ordinance or a summary thereof in the official newspaper of the City as 
provided by law. 
 
 

PASSED by the City Council this _____ day of May, 2023. 
 
 

 
       
Mayor, Terri Cooper 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Finance Director/City Clerk Koss Ronholt 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
_______________________________ 
City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 
 
Date of Publication:  
 
Effective Date:              
 

 

101



2.16 - SALARIES 

2.16.010 Salary Commission Created 

An independent salary commission is hereby created for the purpose of reviewing and setting the salaries 
of the Mayor and City Council Members of the City of Medical Lake.  The official name of the Commission 
shall be the Medical Lake Salary Commission. 

2.16.020  Salary 

A. Council Members. Each city council member shall be entitled to receive a salary as established by the 
salary commission, or as established through adoption by city council of a separate ordinance setting the 
salary for city council members. This salary shall be paid once per month. 

B. Mayor. The mayor shall be entitled to a salary as established by the salary commission, or as established 
through adoption by city council of a separate ordinance setting the salary for the mayor. This salary shall 
be paid once per month. 

C. Adjustment by Salary Commission. If the City’s salary commission establishes a salary schedule for the 
mayor and/or council members, those salaries shall take effect at the times, in the amounts, and under the 
conditions established in the schedule or as otherwise provided by law. 

2.16.030 Independent Salary Commission 

A. Salary Commission. 

1. Membership - Appointment. The salary commission shall consist of five (5) members appointed 
by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. 

2. Compensation. Members of the salary commission shall serve without compensation. 

3. Term. The term of appointment is up to one (1) year.  Each member shall hold office until a 
successor is appointed and confirmed unless removed for cause pursuant to MLMC 2.16.030(7) or 
RCW 35.21.015, as now or hereafter amended.  Appointments may be made to complete an unexpired 
term in the event of a vacancy. 

4. Qualifications. 

a. Each person appointed to serve as a member of the salary commission shall be a citizen of 
the United States, a resident of the City of Medical Lake for at least one (1) year immediately 
preceding such appointment and while serving on the  salary commission, and a registered voter 
in Spokane County. 

b. No officer, official, or employee of the City of Medical Lake or any of their immediate family 
members may serve on the salary commission. “Immediate family member” as used in this 
section means the parents, spouse, registered domestic partner, siblings, children, aunt and 
uncle, grandparents, grandchildren, step relatives, domestic partner relatives, or dependent 
relatives of the officer, official, or employee, whether or not living in the household of the 
officer, official, or employee. 

5. Operation. 

102



a. The salary commission shall elect a chair and vice chair from among its members. The salary 
commission may establish and adopt rules of procedure for the efficient and fair conduct of its 
business. 

b. The City Administrator shall appoint staff and make available supplies and equipment to 
assist the salary commission in the preparation of its’ reports and records. 

c. Any communication from the salary commission to any member of the City Council while 
reviewing the schedule of salaries shall be in writing and made part of the record of the salary 
commission’s proceedings. 

d. The salary commission shall keep a written record of its proceedings, which shall be a public 
record in accordance with state law, and shall actively solicit public comment at all meetings 
which shall be subject to the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW. 

e. The first meeting of the salary commission shall occur no later than twenty (20) days after 
the appointments are made by the City Council, and the commission shall review and, if it so 
determines, amend and file its schedule of salaries with the City Clerk within ninety (90) days 
after appointments are made by the City Council. 

f. Three (3) members of the salary commission shall constitute a quorum and the affirmative 
vote of three (3) members shall be sufficient for the decision of all matters and the transaction 
of all business. 

6. Responsibilities. It is the goal of the salary commission to base salaries of elected officials on 
realistic standards so that the elected officials may be paid according to the duties of their offices and 
so that citizen of the highest quality may be attracted to public service.  To determine the appropriate 
rate of compensation, the salary commission shall assess the market rate of compensation for elected 
city officials and study the relationship of salaries to the duties of the Mayor and City Council 
members. Salaries for City Council members shall be uniform.  Salaries shall be established by an 
affirmative vote of not less than three (3) members. 

7. Removal. A member of the salary commission may only be removed during the appointment term 
for cause such as incapacity, incompetence, neglect of duty, malfeasance, or for a disqualifying 
change of residence. 

8. Filing Date – Salary Schedule. The salary commission shall file its salary schedule with the City 
Clerk who will publish the schedule two (2) times, at least one (1)week apart, in the official 
newspaper of the City. The second date of publication shall be considered the official filing date of 
the salary schedule. 

9. Effective Date – Salaries. The salary commission’s salary schedule shall become effective in the 
amounts, at the times, and under the conditions established in the schedule unless a referendum has 
been filed pursuant to MLMC 2.16.030(B). Once filed, the schedule shall be incorporated into the 
City budget without further action of the City Council or salary commission subject to any 
referendum. Salary adjustments established by the salary commission that result in a salary increase 
shall be effective as provided by law as to all council members and/or the mayor, regardless of their 
terms of office. If the salary adjustment established by the salary commission results in a salary 

103

https://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=42.30
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/SpokaneValley/#!/SpokaneValley02/SpokaneValley0210.html#2.10.020


decrease, the decreased salary shall be effective at the commencement of the incumbent’s next 
subsequent term of office. 

B. Referendum.

1. Salary Schedule Subject to Referendum Petition.

a. The salary commission’s adopted salary schedule shall be subject to referendum petition by
the people of the City of Medical Lake. Any such petition shall be filed with the City Clerk
within thirty (30) days after the official filing date of the salary schedule. In the event of the
filing of a valid referendum petition, the salary increase or decrease shall not go into effect until
approved by a vote of the people.

b. Referendum measures shall be submitted to the voters of the City of Medical Lake at the next
following general or municipal election occurring thirty (30) days or more after the petition is
filed and shall be otherwise governed by the provisions of the Washington State Constitution
or other laws generally applicable to referendum measures.

2. Referendum Statement. A referendum statement on a petition shall be phrased in the following
language:

Should the salary schedule filed with the City Clerk of the City of Medical Lake by the 
Independent Salary Commission on __________ be repealed in its entirety? Your signature on 
this petition indicates your vote in favor of repeal of the attached salary schedule in its entirety. 

A copy of the salary schedule or ordinance to such referendum petition shall be attached to each 
referendum petition for the information of the parties requested to sign such petition. 

3. Initiative Provisions Applied to Referendum Process. All state law provisions applicable to the
form of the petition and sufficiency of signatures required for an initiative petition as set forth herein,
and to the submission to the vote of the people as set forth herein, shall apply to a referendum petition
and to the salary schedule sought to be defeated thereby.

4. Referendum – Effective Date – Record. If a majority of the number of votes cast on the referendum
oppose the salary schedule or ordinance, such salary schedule or ordinance shall be deemed repealed
following the certification of the vote.

2.16.040 - Reimbursement for travel expenses authorized. 

In the event any City officers or employees incur expenses in an authorized pursuit of City business, 
reasonable reimbursement may be made in accordance with the City's Personnel Rules and Regulations. 
Advance travel expenses may be approved by the Mayor or City Administrator. 

2.16.050 - Payment per mile for use of private vehicle.  

For the use of a private passenger vehicle in performing travel on behalf of the City, payment for such use 
shall be at the rate approved by the City's Personnel Rules and Procedures. 

104


	2023 Budget Report Q1.pdf
	Budget Report
	Budget Report Notes
	General Fund	
	General Fund	Departments
	Special Revenue Funds
	Special Revenue Funds (cont.)
	Proprietary Funds
	Thanks!

	Vacant Property Ordinance.pdf
	Vacant Property Ordinance
	Slide Number 2

	LU 2022-004 TA CC Presentation 2023 05 02.pdf
	LU 2022-004 TA
	PROCESS
	APPLICATION
	EXISTING TEXT
	PROPOSED TEXT
	SEPA
	APPROVAL CRITERIA
	AGENCY & PUBLIC COMMENT
	PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION
	TONIGHT

	Monarch Self Storage - CC - 5-2-23.pdf
	LU 2022-004 TA�“Shipping Containers”
	Slide Number 2
	Proposal
	Zoning Map
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Suggested language
	Suggested language

	Ordinance 1110 (Elected Officials Salaries) w attachment.pdf
	Finance Director/City Clerk Koss Ronholt
	City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz
	Date of Publication:
	Effective Date:

	Draft Vacant Property Ordinance.pdf
	Chapter 14.16 MAINTENANCE OF VACANT COMMERCIAL SPACE IN THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT
	14.16.010 Scope.
	14.16.020 Administration.
	14.16.030 Definitions.
	14.16.040 General minimum maintenance requirements.
	14.16.050 Vacant commercial space registration.
	14.16.060 Window displays for commercial spaces not occupied for thirty days.
	14.16.070 Fees for vacant commercial space registration.
	14.16.080 Delinquent registration fees—Collection.
	14.16.090 Duty to amend registration statement.
	14.16.100 Inspections.
	14.16.110 Enforcement.
	14.16.120 Annual report.


	Fireworks Retail Sales Permit 2023.pdf
	20230501084608.pdf
	Fireworks Retail Sales Permit 2023.pdf


	Councilmember: Chad Pritchard
	Meeting type: City Council
	Meeting Date: 5/16/23
	Other Please describe: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Date Requested: 5/11/23
	Approved by CouncilCommittee motion on: 
	Denied by CouncilCommittee motion on: 
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Yes
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Yes


